
CITY OF TONGANOXIE 
321 S. DELAWARE 913-845-2620 

June 4, 2018 
7:00 Regular Meeting 

 
*Note – This meeting may be transmitted via Facebook Live on the City of Tonganoxie page 

 
Honorable Jason K. Ward, Mayor 

Council Members 
David Bennett  Rocky Himpel               Curtis Oroke            Kara Reed           Loralee Stevens 

 
Open Regular Meeting – 7:00 p.m. 
 
I. Pledge of Allegiance  

    
II. Approval of Minutes – Regular meeting dated May 21, 2018 

 
III. Consent Agenda 

 
a) Review bill payments 

 

IV. Open Agenda 
 
Members of the public are welcome to use this time to comment about any matter relating to City 
business. The comments that are discussed under Open Agenda may or may not be acted upon by the 
Council during this meeting. In order to speak during open agenda, you must sign up with your name 
and address with the city clerk or designee before the meeting.  Comments will be limited to 3 
minutes.  Please wait to be recognized by the Mayor and state your name and address for the record. 

    
V. Old Business 

 
VI. New Business 

 
a) Resolution 06-18-01: Resolution of Intent to Issue Industrial Revenue Bonds in an Amount Not to 

Exceed $9,200,000 
 

b) Consider approval of Fireworks Permit for Garrett’s Worldwide Enterprises, LLC 
 

c) City Manager Agenda 
1. Proposed 2019 Budget Presentation 

 
d) City Attorney Agenda 

 
e) Mayor Pro Tem Agenda 

 
f) City Council Agenda 

 
g) Mayor Agenda 

1. Consideration of Recreation Commission Reappointment Request 
2. Executive session for the discussion of non-elected personnel matters  

 

VII. Information & Communications (No Action Required) 
 

VIII. Adjourn 



 

Minutes - Page 1 of 3 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DRAFT MINUTES 
May 21, 2018 

7:00 p.m. Regular Meeting 
 

Open Regular Meeting – 7:00 p.m. 

I. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
• Mayor Ward opened the meeting at 7:00 p.m. 
• Roll Call: Council members present were Mayor Ward, Mr. Himpel, Ms. Reed, Ms. Stevens, Mr. Bennett, and Mr. 

Oroke. City Manager George Brajkovic, Assistant City Manager Dan Porter, Fire Chief John Zimbelman, and City 
Attorney Shannon Marcano were also in attendance.   

• Mayor Ward led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
    

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING DATED MAY 7, 2018 
o Ms. Reed made a motion to approve the minutes from the May 7, 2018 City Council meeting.  
o Mr. Bennett seconded.  
o Vote of all ayes, motion carried. 

 

III. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

a) Review bill payments 
o Mr. Oroke made a motion to approve the consent agenda.  
o Ms. Stevens Seconded.  
o Vote of all ayes, motion carried. 

 

IV. OPEN AGENDA 
 
Members of the public are welcome to use this time to comment about any matter relating to City 
business. The comments that are discussed under Open Agenda may or may not be acted upon by the 
Council during this meeting. In order to speak during open agenda, you must sign up with your name 
and address with the city clerk or designee before the meeting.  Comments will be limited to 3 
minutes.  Please wait to be recognized by the Mayor and state your name and address for the record. 
 

• Mayor Ward opened the public comment portion of the agenda. 
• Lawrence Hill, 5441 Fall Creek Drive, addressed the City Council about the Library project later on the agenda 

and his concern about the safety of the 4th Street Bridge over Tonganoxie Creek for pedestrians.  
• Mayor Ward noted the discussion at the City Council CMIP workshop earlier in the evening was in part devoted 

to this capital need and other large projects.  
• No other members of the public signed up to address the City Council in open agenda.  
• Mayor Ward closed the open agenda portion of the agenda. 

 

V. OLD BUSINESS 
 

• No Items  
 



 

Minutes - Page 2 of 3 

 

VI. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a) Resolution 05-18-03: Participation of the Tonganoxie Fire Department as part of the Leavenworth 
County Task Force for mutual aid throughout the State of Kansas for emergencies to include 
wildfires 

• Mr. Zimbelman introduced the item and explained the contents of the proposed resolution.  
o Mr. Bennett made a motion to approve Resolution 05-18-03: authorizing participation of the Tonganoxie Fire 

Department as part of the Leavenworth County Task Force for mutual aid throughout the State of Kansas for 
emergencies to include wildfires. 

o Ms. Stevens seconded.  
o Vote of all ayes, motion carried. 

 
b) Resolution 05-18-04: Authorizing the execution of a Real Estate Contract of Sale between the City 

of Tonganoxie (Buyer) and the Tongie 5, LLC (Seller), for the purchase of a 2 acre site for the new 
Library at approximately 304 Shawnee St 

• Mr. Brajkovic introduced the item.  
o Ms. Reed made a motion to approve Resolution 05-18-04: Authorizing the execution of a Real Estate Contract 

of Sale between the City of Tonganoxie (Buyer) and the Tongie 5, LLC (Seller), for the purchase of a 2 acre site 
for the new Library at approximately 304 Shawnee St.  

o Mr. Himpel seconded.  
o Vote of all ayes, motion carried. 

 
c) Resolution 05-18-05: Authorizing the execution of an Economic Development Agreement between 

the City of Tonganoxie and the Tongie 5, LLC for the balance of the property not purchased for the 
Library project at 304 Shawnee St 

• Mr. Brajkovic introduced the item.  
o Ms. Reed made a motion to approve Resolution 05-18-05: Authorizing the execution of an Economic 

Development Agreement between the City of Tonganoxie and the Tongie 5, LLC for the balance of the 
property not purchased for the Library project at 304 Shawnee St.  

o Mr. Bennett seconded. 
o Vote of all ayes, motion carried. 

 
d) Ordinance 1443: Amending the General Business District Zoning Ordinance to allow for self-

storage units with a Special Use Permit 
• Mr. Brajkovic introduced the item and described the discussions held at the Planning Commission, which were 

demonstrated in the draft minutes included as an attachment.  
• Mayor Ward questioned the application of a definition of primary and secondary use in the case of a 

development including some portion of this type of use.  
• Mr. Himpel noted he liked the original staff recommendation’s approach.  
• Mr. Oroke noted concerns from the perspective of a business applying for investment for development on a 

property with a use contingent on the re-approval of a special use permit after a short duration. He indicated 
support for re-evaluation of the issue by the Planning Commission.    

o Mr. Himpel made a motion to continue this item to the Planning Commission for further discussion and 
review.   

o Mr. Oroke seconded.  
o Vote of all ayes, motion carried. 

 



 

Minutes - Page 3 of 3 

 

e) Tonganoxie Days funding request 
• Mr. Brajkovic and Mr. Porter introduced the item and described the financial standing of the preparations for 

the Tonganoxie Days event on June 9.  
• Mr. Oroke noted the need for volunteers to sign up  
o Ms. Stevens made a motion to authorize City contribution to Tonganoxie Days in an amount not to exceed 

$8,000.   
o Mr. Bennett seconded.  
o Vote of all ayes, motion carried. 

 

f) City Manager Agenda 
1. April Financial Report 

• Mr. Porter presented the April 2018 Financial Report to the City Council. 
 

g) City Attorney Agenda 
 

h) Mayor Pro Tem Agenda 
 

i) City Council Agenda 
• Mr. Himpel noted recent concerns about dogs and pets in town.  
• Ms. Stevens commented on the ongoing planning for the Sunflower Stroll passive event to be held on Labor Day.  

 
j) Mayor Agenda 

1. Consideration of Planning Commissioner Applications 
• Mr. Brajkovic described the three applications received for the vacant position on the Planning Commission.  
• Mayor Ward addressed the applicants present and offered the opportunity to present to the City Council.  
• Kevin Harris addressed the City Council regarding his application for the vacancy.  
• David Coffman addressed the City Council regarding his application for the vacancy. 
o Mayor Ward nominated Kevin Harris to fill the vacancy on the Planning Commission previously occupied by 

Steve Gumm.  
o Mr. Himpel made a motion to approve the nomination of Kevin Harris to the Planning Commission vacancy. 
o Mr. Oroke seconded the motion.  
o Vote of all ayes, motion carried.  
 

VII. INFORMATION & COMMUNICATIONS (NO ACTION REQUIRED) 
 

VIII. ADJOURN 
o Ms. Reed made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  
o Mr. Oroke seconded the motion.  
o Vote of all ayes, motion carried.  
o Meeting adjourned at 8:12 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted,  
 

 
Dan Porter, Assistant City Manager 
 



5/31/2018 10:06:43 PM Page 1 of 2

My Check Report
City of Tonganoxie, KS By Check Number

Date Range: 05/18/2018 - 05/31/2018

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Amount NumberPayment TypePayment Date Discount Amount

Bank Code: AP Bank-AP Bank

0826 ANNA WOLF 05/23/2018 448911,025.00Regular 0.00

0939 BALZOUT LLC 05/23/2018 44892437.50Regular 0.00

0046 BAY BRIDGE ADMINISTRATORS, LLC 05/23/2018 44893263.02Regular 0.00

0056 BLUE CROSS AND BLUE SHIELD 05/23/2018 4489428,295.13Regular 0.00

0059 BOARD OF PUBLIC UTIL.-WATER 05/23/2018 4489515,232.22Regular 0.00

0070 BROTHER' S MARKET 05/23/2018 44896274.32Regular 0.00

0099 CITY OF LEAVENWORTH 05/23/2018 44897450.00Regular 0.00

0111 COLEMAN EQUIPMENT INC 05/23/2018 4489896.28Regular 0.00

0938 E2 EMBROIDERY & SCREEN PRINTING 05/23/2018 44899470.00Regular 0.00

0166 EMERGENCY REPORTING 05/23/2018 44900181.33Regular 0.00

0813 FREESTATE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE 05/23/2018 449011,600.00Regular 0.00

0809 FREESTATE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE INC 05/23/2018 449028.15Regular 0.00

0596 GEOFF SONNTAG 05/23/2018 44903600.00Regular 0.00

0231 HEARTLAND ALARMS, INC. 05/23/2018 44904325.00Regular 0.00

0283 JAYHAWK TROPHY CO., INC. 05/23/2018 44905559.55Regular 0.00

0308 KANSAS  STATE TREASURER 05/23/2018 449061,352.00Regular 0.00

0914 LOCAL LAW, LLC. 05/23/2018 449074,350.00Regular 0.00

0426 LV COUNTY  SHERIFF OFFICE 05/23/2018 44908385.00Regular 0.00

0857 MIDCONTINENT COMMUNICATIONS 05/23/2018 44909915.44Regular 0.00

0500 OREILLY AUTO PARTS 05/23/2018 44910648.60Regular 0.00

0542 QUILL 05/23/2018 44911144.31Regular 0.00

0578 SECURITY BENEFIT 05/23/2018 44912288.34Regular 0.00

0579 SECURITY BENEFIT - 457 05/23/2018 449132,256.92Regular 0.00

0612 SUPERIOR LAMP & SUPPLY INC 05/23/2018 44914667.58Regular 0.00

0628 TODD'S TIRE LLC 05/23/2018 4491535.00Regular 0.00

0641 TYLER TECHNOLOGIES 05/23/2018 44916150.00Regular 0.00

0648 UNIVERSAL, INC. 05/23/2018 44917416.19Regular 0.00

Regular Checks

Manual Checks

Voided Checks

Discount

Payment
CountPayment Type

Bank Code AP Bank Summary

Bank Drafts

EFT's

27

0

0

0

0

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

27 0.00

Payment

61,426.88

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

61,426.88

Payable
Count

36

0

0

0

0

36



My Check Report Date Range: 05/18/2018 - 05/31/2018

Page 2 of 25/31/2018 10:06:43 PM

All Bank Codes Check Summary

Payment Type Discount
Payment

Count Payment
Payable

Count

Regular Checks

Manual Checks

Voided Checks

Bank Drafts

EFT's

27

0

0

0

0

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

27 0.00

61,426.88

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

61,426.88

36

0

0

0

0

36

Fund Name AmountPeriod

Fund Summary

998 Gen Fund-Pooled Cash 61,426.885/2018

61,426.88



City of Tonganoxie www.tonganoxie.org (913) 845-2620 
  

 
Office of the City Manager 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 

DATE:  June 4, 2018 

TO:  Honorable Mayor Jason K. Ward and Members of the City Council 

FROM:   Dan Porter, Assistant City Manager 

SUBJECT:  Resolution 06-18-01: Resolution of Intent to Issue IRBs in an Amount Not to Exceed $9,200,000 

 
DISCUSSION: 
The City Council adopted a tax abatement policy and set a bond issuance fee structure for private activity 
revenue bonds with on July 17, 2017 with Resolution 07-17-03. This policy structures the use of two incentives, 
Industrial Revenue Bonds (K.S.A. 12-1740 et seq. and 79-201a) and the Kansas Constitutional Exemption 
(Section 13 of Article 11).  These private activity Bonds do not require the City’s financial backing, nor do they 
impact the City’s credit rating. 
 
The City recently received an application and application fee from Bright Star Properties, LLC, for $9,121,000 
in industrial revenue bonds for a proposed commercial project involving construction of a multi-use project 
including an approximately 10,000 square ft retail/office commercial building, 37 residential duplexes, 6 self-
storage units, and parking.   
 
No tax abatement according to the City’s policy is requested for this project. The project does qualify for a 
Project Exemption Certificate (PEC) thru the Kansas Department of revenue, which would exempt the project’s 
construction material and personal property purchases from sales tax. 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
The applicant has paid a non-refundable application fee of $2,000. In addition, the City will receive a bond 
origination fee of 0.250% of the principal amount of bonds issued up to $10,000,000 simultaneously with the 
issuance of the bonds, which could be up to $23,000 based on the cap included in this resolution of intent.   
 
ACTION NEEDED: 
Make a motion to approve the Resolution 06-18-01, a resolution determining the intent of the City of 
Tonganoxie to issue its industrial revenue bonds in the aggregate amount not to exceed $9,200,000 to finance 
the costs of acquiring, constructing and equipping a mixed-use commercial project for the benefit of Bright Star 
Properties, LLC, or its successors and assigns sales tax exemption only. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 06-18-01 
IRB Application: Bright Star Properties, LLC 
 
 
cc:  George Brajkovic, City Manager 

  



06-18-01























05/31/2018















City of Tonganoxie www.tonganoxie.org (913) 845-2620 
  

 
Office of the City Manager 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 
DATE:  June 4, 2018 
TO:  Honorable Mayor Jason K. Ward and Members of the City Council 
FROM:   Dan Porter, Assistant City Manager 

SUBJECT:  Consider Approval of Fireworks Sales Permit for 2018 

 
DISCUSSION: 
Attached is an application for a vending permit for fireworks for 2018. By ordinance, the City Council reserves 
the authority to approve permits for such purpose. The applicant has satisfied the requirements of the fireworks 
permit and is listed below: 
 
• Garrett’s Worldwide Enterprises, LLC  
 
City Code allows the general public to shoot fireworks beginning at 8:00 a.m. through 11 p.m. on July 4. 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
The permit will initially generate $500 in revenue for the City, followed by additional sales tax revenue from the 
period of sales. The revenue from this permit is anticipated in the 2018 budget.  
 
ACTION NEEDED: 
Make a motion to approve the fireworks sales permit for Garrett’s Worldwide Enterprises, LLC.   
  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Fireworks Permit Application 
 
 
cc:  George Brajkovic, City Manager 

John Zimbelman, Fire Chief    


















